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What>s New At The Museum..............

The Depot Museum staff and the Fortuna Historical
Commission are developing new exhibits and new goals. Curator
Alex Service has installed thematic exhibits connected to the seasons
and to historical events near Fortuna and far afield. Currently, the
museum features exhibits on the Presidents of the United States and
on the Prohibition era and its impact on Fortuna. Upcoming exhibits
include a centennial salute to the Fortuna High School graduating
classes of 2012 and 1912 (on display in May and June) and an exhibit
on Fortuna-area newspapers, which will be on display beginning this
summer.

Service and the Commission are working to acquire the digital
archive of the Humboldt Beacon newspaper, covering the period from
1907 until the newspaper’s last days in 2011. The archive will be an
invaluable resource for research into local history and genealogy, and
will be available for public use.
Service and the Commission hope to

have the archive available by 2013. '
FORTUNA AND THE
Now available in the Depot EEL RIVER VALLEY
Museum gift shop is the book Fortuna
and The Eel River Valley published by
Arcadia Publishing in July

2011. Authors Dr. Service and
Commission Chair Susan O’Hara
greatly enjoyed the research and
writing process, and have held several
book signings. Money earned

from royalties and museum gift shop

sales will be used to develop new

exhibits. The book is available at the
museum and from other local retailers
for $21.99. With the success of this book, Service and O’Hara are
planning other local history publications.

The Depot Museum needs
you! If you would like to
volunteer, please contact

Curator Alex Service.
We hope that you can stop by and see “What’s New”
around the museum soon. Also, if you are interested in
volunteering, please contact our curator Dr. Service at

Front desk/gift shop
volunteers are needed
to maintain our summer
hours, when the museum is (707) 725-7645 or at fortunamuseum@ci.fortuna.ca.us.

open 7 days a week.

Support Your Local Museum! Donations to the Museum help support ongoing archival work and new exhibits.




From The Director......By John Crotty, Parks and Rec. Director

| have been working with the Sturgis family to compile information on our caboose, Northwestern Pacific
Caboose Number 11. The caboose was donated to the Depot Museum by the Noble family in memory of Mary Snell
Noble. Jay Sturgis passed away in 2006, the same year
that the caboose came to the museum. Jay worked in and
on the caboose for many years. He had a passion for his
job and especially for the caboose. Mrs. Sturgis and her
sons have sent us this reminiscence.

Jay and the ERS Caboose, by Dorla Sturgis

Jay always had an interest in trains (his
grandfather was a railroad engineer), and when Eel River
Sawmills' shipments outgrew their small "shipping shack,”
he was determined to find and adapt a caboose as a
replacement. Jay was acquainted with George Reinke of
G&R Metals in Eureka and he enlisted George's help.
Shopping trips to Eureka often included a stop by the G&R
salvage yard to see if there had been any leads on an
available caboose.

Finally, in 1970, there was word of a 1909 Northwestern Pacific caboose being retired, and the next hurdle
was to convince the ERS owners. Company vice-president Virgil Nesbitt was instrumental in getting the okay from
management. The yard area was set up to accommodate the caboose on the south side of the mill which paralleled
the freeway and railroad track. (We have photos of the caboose being set into place and will try to locate them.)

The caboose was quite run-down. The roof was repaired, the exterior was painted and the company logo
was added. Weekends saw Jay and | cleaning and painting the interior. Our two young sons, Guy and David, sat
overhead in the cupola and watched the freeway traffic while we worked! A counter and desk was built in; wall
paneling made it a little less drafty and a large window was installed on the north side facing the mill operations. The
company had a new poured-vinyl surface put on the floor but the new finish didn't hold up. The caboose floor flexed
too much and it soon had to be strengthened and replaced with a heavier material. New wiring and lighting
completed the makeover. Eventually, three employees worked in the caboose.

Over the years, the caboose had many rail buffs, prospective buyers, and just curious travelers stop by.
Because of this attention, the company prepared a ‘form letter' in reply to those inquiring about its history as well as
to others who were interested in buying it. It became somewhat of a landmark on Highway 101. Jay was so pleased
to have had the caboose workspace and never tired of showing it off and relating its history.

The company milled an enormous amount of lumber over the 26 years Jay oversaw the shipping. As much
as 180 million board feet a year was shipped both by truck and rail by Eel River Sawmills and it meant long hours
spent in the caboose. It was almost a "second home," but one he thoroughly enjoyed. We all have happy memories
of those years.

Did you Know ? ... ... ... ... ... ... By Susan O’Hara, Historical Commission Chair

| Beginning in the 1870s a mineral springs resort was found in the hills above
- Fortuna. Dr. Theodore Dwight Felt founded his health spa five miles from Rohnerville
14 in 1874, advertising “the finest and best mineral springs at present known in the state
¢.#4 of California.” Felt’s resort was located near today’s Newburg Road. The resort hotel

was twice destroyed by fire, but Felt's Springs — also known as Mountain Glen
Springs — continued to be a popular resort.

b In 1890 the Humboldt County business directory noted that the resort with its
=sge.. hotel and cottages could accommodate up to 60 people. The writers of the directory
B called it “one of the gem retreats of California for recreation and

~ rest.” Felt's son advertised the resort as “endowed by nature with lovely Mountain
Scenery, Medicinal Springs, Soothing and Warm Sulphur and Soda Baths, all

- Curative, Restoring and Refreshing.” Even at the height of the timber industry era,
Fortuna and the Eel River Valley were popular vacation spots.




1912 — Fortuna Goes Dry! By Dr. Alex Service, Curator

Several of the Depot’s changing exhibits this year have a “100 years later” focus.
Currently on display is the exhibit “Temperance and Intemperance: Fortuna In and Out
of Prohibition.”

Fortuna’s electorate voted “dry” on April 8, 1912, banning the sale of alcohol
within the city limits beginning three months after the election. The ban remained in
place until the repeal of nationwide Prohibition in 1933.

The Depot Museum exhibit explores this era in Fortuna’s history, as well as touching on the
wider context of the
national Temperance
movement. Items on
display include election
materials from the 1912
election, the one known
exterior photograph
showing a pre-Prohibition
Fortuna saloon, pro— and
anti— Prohibition
propaganda, and
Humboldt newspapers
from the 1920s featuring
stories on the region’s
bootleggers, speakeasies,
and the law enforcement
efforts of the “prohis” or
“dry squad.”

Do You Recognize this Saloon?

The hand-written note on this photograph dates the image to April 23, 1915, and identifies the
subject and location as “Frans C. Nysola, Fortuna, Cal?”

If the date of April 1915 is accurate, then this picture seemingly cannot show a Fortuna saloon.
The Friendly City’s saloons had been closed since July 1912. (Perhaps this explains the somewhat
desolated look of Nysola’s saloon in the photograph, if it was indeed a Fortuna establishment!)

The décor in this bar room includes a large number of calendars and other advertising
materials put out by the Humboldt Brewing Company, suggesting at least a relatively nearby location
for this saloon.

The photograph was donated to the Depot Museum along with other items identified as being
from the Fort Bragg area. Perhaps Frans Nysola’s saloon was, in fact, in Fort Bragg.

Do any of our readers have information or insights that might help us track down Frans
Nysola’s saloon?




Fortuna Cemetery Tour Looks Forward to Third Year

Mark your calendars for the
afternoon of Sunday, October 28, 2012,
and plan to attend the third annual “Grave
Matters and Untimely Departures”
theatrical presentation at Fortuna’s
Sunrise Cemetery.

The event is a fund-raiser for the
Fortuna Cemetery District, a non-profit
organization which oversees the seven
cemeteries in Fortuna, Rohnerville and
Hydesville.

During the one-hour guided tour,
costumed actors portraying some of the
intriguing, tragic or infamous figures
buried at Sunrise appear at their Cast and crew of 201 I’s “Grave Matters and Untimely Departures” at Sunrise Cemetery

characters’ grave sites. Each actor presents a five-minute monologue based on their character’s life.
The monologues are written by the actors themselves, using historical materials compiled by Depot
Museum curator Alex Service.

As in previous years, parking will be available at Newburg Park, with a shuttle leaving for the
cemetery every ten minutes. Comfortable shoes are a must, and g

of the day.

This year marks the 100th birthday anniversary of one of
2011’s “Grave Matters” characters, Leo Gallagher. Leo was a
sixteen-year-old Junior at Fortuna High School when he died in a g
football accident in 1928. For 83 years his grave was unmarked,
until “Grave Matters” researchers re-discovered his story. Local
businessman Shannon Lewis of Lewis Redwood Products felt a
personal connection to the story. Like Leo Gallagher, Lewis
played Center on the FUHS football team. Lewis carved and
donated a marker that was installed at Leo Gallagher’s grave
shortly before the 2011 “Grave Matters” tour. The marker
includes a tribute by one of Leo’s teachers: “He was an honor to
his school, to his family and to his church.” 182011 1120 N S

Among the Depot Museum’s changing exhibits for 2012 is

a 100th anniversary exhibit on Leo The new grave marker for Leo Gallagher (1912 — 1928), carved and donated by Shannon
Gallagher, on display through June. Lewis and installed in 2011.




